
Approved March 25, 2015 (GB) 

 
 
 
 

NEIGHBORHOOD ADVISORY COMMISSION 
REGULAR MEETING 

HEARINGS FOR THE NEIGHBORHOOD ENHANCEMENT PARTNERSHIP 
PROGRAM 

One Civic Center Boulevard, Community Development Meeting Room 1 
7447 E. Indian School Road, Scottsdale, AZ 85251 

Wednesday, February 25, 2015 
 
 

PRESENT: Michael Gonzalez, Chairman 
 Todd Becker, Vice Chairman 
 Joe Meli 
 Garrett Redd 
 Kevin Walling (arrived at 5:34 p.m.) 
  
ABSENT: Jennifer Fabiano  
 Jordan Ledbetter  
  
STAFF: Greg Bestgen, Staff Representative 
  
 
Call to Order/Roll Call 
 
Chairman Gonzalez called the meeting of the Neighborhood Advisory Commission to order 
at 5:002 p.m.  A formal roll call confirmed the members present as stated above. 
 
 
Public Comment 
 
No members of the public wished to speak. 
 
 
1. Approve January 28, 2015 Draft Summary Meeting Minutes 

 
COMMISSIONER MELI MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE 
REGULAR MEETING OF JANUARY 28, 2015.  CHAIRMAN GONZALEZ 
SECONDED THE MOTION, WHICH CARRIED BY A VOTE OF FOUR (4) TO 
ZERO (0).  COMMISSIONER WALLING WAS NOT YET PRESENT AND 
COMMISSIONERS FABIANO AND LEDBETTER WERE ABSENT. 
 



Neighborhood Advisory Commission 
February 25, 2015 
Page 2 

2. Planning, Discussion and Possible Action on NEP Projects and Spirit Awards  
 

Mr. Greg Bestgen, Staff Representative, stated one nomination has been received 
for the Spirit Awards, despite widespread publicity.  He suggested that the 
Commissioners visit the McDowell corridor from Pima Road to 64th Street and 
McDowell north to Thomas Road and look for properties to nominate online.  
Commissioner Meli suggested considering properties which have received NEP 
grants.  Any residential property or commercial facility within the corridor boundaries 
is eligible based on the current state of the yard or property.  
 
Discussion ensued on voting procedures.  The Commission agreed that any 
Commissioner who nominates a property should recuse him or herself from voting.  
If a nomination is made for a property that has received NEP funding, Chairman 
Gonzalez suggested that the Commission should disclose this fact.   
 
Mr. Bestgen displayed a draft of the NEP recognition sign.  The Commission 
discussed adjustments to the design and wording.  Mr. Bestgen undertook to meet 
with the graphic designer and email his revisions to the Commissioners.  In 
accordance with the Open Meeting law, they are to respond to him without copying 
each other. 
 
Commissioner Meli wondered whether the Mayor and Councilmembers could 
nominate properties.  Mr. Bestgen undertook to check this with Mr. Keagy.  
Commissioner Meli suggested a Commission member could address a Council 
meeting during the public comment period to encourage nominations, pointing out 
that a positive community message during public comment will generate enthusiasm.  
Vice-Chairman Becker volunteered to appear at the next Council meeting and 
Mr. Bestgen undertook to help him relate the Spirit Award to an appropriate agenda 
item and possibly add visual material for the Channel 11 recording. 
 
Vice-Chairman Becker said he would publicize the Spirit Awards through the 
Scottsdale Leadership Facebook page.   
 
Mr. Bestgen showed the sign that will be placed on Spirit Award nominee properties.  
Commissioners made suggestions such as adding a QR square barcode for 
smartphones to link to the website.  They agreed that the sign needs more context.   
 
Mr. Bestgen asked Vice-Chairman Becker to confirm that the name Spirit Award 
would not be confused with any initiative of Scottsdale Leadership. 
 
 

3. Planning, Discussion and Possible Action on 2015 Work Plan 
 
Mr. Bestgen reviewed the Gantt chart that former Vice-Chair Simms had created last 
summer and a simplified version.  He undertook to send those to Commissioner 
Walling along with the Commission's three goals for 2015 so they can be integrated, 
including action items.   
 
   



Neighborhood Advisory Commission 
February 25, 2015 
Page 3 

4. Staff and Commission Updates, Comments, Future Agenda Items 
 
Mr. Bestgen reminded the meeting that the audit is coming up in April.  The annual 
report shows the Commission's concrete accomplishments.  The Commissioners 
concurred that the Chairman and Vice-Chairman should attend the Audit 
Subcommittee meeting on April 20.  Commissioner Meli suggested submitting photos 
and/or video of completed projects to share with the Subcommittee members.  
Mr. Bestgen said he would submit the PowerPoint presentation that had been 
prepared.  Vice-Chairman Becker suggested contacting previous NEP recipients and 
suggesting that if they feel strongly about the future of the program they may wish to 
attend the meeting.   
 
Mr. Bestgen reported receiving an application for the NEP from an HOA.  Once the 
audit is completed they will review the application.  For the time being he is not actively 
publicizing the program.   
  
Mr. Bestgen said Ms. Christy Hill will attend the March Commission meeting to provide 
an update on the Spirit Awards.   
 
Chairman Gonzalez reviewed the minutes of the January meeting, focusing on action  
items.   
 
Mr. Bestgen clarified that the NEP guidelines in fact require that 50 percent of the 
neighbors support an application, although staff encourages applicants to obtain more 
signatures to demonstrate clear support.   
 
Mr. Bestgen confirmed that as yet there is no update regarding the gift clause.  He is 
planning to discuss this with the City Attorney's Office. 
 
Chairman Gonzalez confirmed that he prepared a white paper about the benefits of the 
NEP, which was included in the annual report.   
 
Commissioner Walling inquired about Channel 11 coverage.  Mr. Bestgen offered to 
speak with Channel 11 staff about creating a short spot on the Spirit Awards.  He 
suggested that Ms. Hill could moderate.   
 
Mr. Bestgen confirmed that information about the Spirit Awards has been sent to local 
newspapers for inclusion in the community bulletin board section but he is not aware of 
anything having been published. 
 
Vice-Chairman Becker asked if it would be appropriate for him to mention the Spirit 
Awards on his Facebook page.  Mr. Bestgen said he would check as the City is 
becoming more involved in social media.  In fact he was attending a workshop on Next 
Door the next day.  Commissioner Redd commented that social media is important.  
Commissioner Meli said Instagram is an uncomplicated way to share images.  
 
Commissioner Meli suggested canvassing other boards and commissions to solicit 
Spirit Award nominations.  Mr. Bestgen said they could contact these bodies through 
their websites.  Vice-Chairman Becker undertook to do this.  Commissioner Walling 
said it is important for people to be aware of this initiative.  Mr. Bestgen reviewed that 
Ms. Hill has done everything she can to raise awareness of the Spirit Awards.  He 
planned to check with her as to whether she had advised the Chamber of Commerce, 



Neighborhood Advisory Commission 
February 25, 2015 
Page 4 

the Rotary Club and similar organizations.  Commissioner Meli said publicity will 
hopefully come when the awards are granted and this is a program that will build from 
year to year.   
 
 

Adjournment 
 

With no further business to discuss, being duly moved and seconded, the meeting adjourned at 
5:56 p.m. 
 
 
 
Recorded and Transcribed by AVTronics Inc 
d/b/a AVTranz Transcription and Reporting Services 


	REGULAR MEETING

